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The State of Iowa

HE State of Towa completed its first century of statehood De-
cember 28 1946. Iowa was the 29th state of the Union, first free

state west of the Mississippi river, On a stone in the Washington
national monument is this inscription:

“Jows, her affections like the _rivers of her borders, flow to an in-
separable Union.”

The State Seal of Iowa displays a banner on which is the state motto:
“Qur liberties we prize and cur rights we will maintaid.”

The first century of statehood witnessed the splendid growth of the
state in population and wealth, and its wholesome expansion in social
and community activities. When the responsibilities of self-government
were assumed, the population of the state was about 100,000; now the
state has approximately two and a half million people,

Iowa was a part of the vast Province of Louisiana purchased by the
United States from France. Other states had been formed in this region;
but Iowa was the first state carved out and established with s0il for-
ever dedicated to human freedom. The probationary time as a territory
was for eight and a half years and it had been only 13 years since the
first legal settlements. Mining of lead had been engaged in by Dubugue
since 1788, by favor of the Indiapns, and there had been feeble efforts
at colonization along the river under Spanish grants; but not until 1833,
following the Black Hawk war, did the home seekers secure title to their
holdings.

During the first 160 years following the voyage of Joliet and Mar-
guette down the Mississippi river in 1673, the land that is now Iowa was
a favorite hunting and trapping ground for a number of tribes of Indiana,
Adventurers, miners, fur buyers, traders, followed the worn trails along
the valleys and over the prairies.

Spanish and French monarchs had vague claims of jurisdiction over
the region, but the standard of neither country had ever been set up
permanently in any part of what is now Iowa. The United States closed
out the French claim by purchase in 1803, after which local authority
shifted frequently; namely, Indiana territory given jurisdiction, 1804;
Louisiana territory organized with St. Louis capitol, 1805; Towsa in-
cluded in Missouri territory, 1812; when Missouri became a state, Iowa
left without government, 1821; Territory of Michigan with capitol at
Detroit given jurisdiction, 1834; became the major part of Wisconsin
territory, 1836, organized and named Territory of Iowa, 1838; state-
hood first authorized, 1845; organized as a state, 1846,

Towa had been the home for many centuries of American red men, who
succeeded an unknown race of pottery malkers and mound builders, but
few Indians were seen by the first explorers. A small band of friendly
Indians entertained Joliet and Marquette at a camp on the Des Moines
river near its mouth, A century later, the Sac and Fox federation of
two Algonquin tribes had villages along the Misgissippi river, where
they cultivated land and had permanent homes. They had migrated
originally from the Atlantic coast and before settling in Towsa had united
for defense. When Illinois became 4 state, they were driven from their
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homes east of the river, and their lands bought or confiscated. Chief
Black Hawk, the military leader of the Sac tribe, made heroic resistance,
but was taken to Washington and kept a prisoner for a time.

The Sac and Fox federation had been chief occupant of the land along
the Mississippi valley, and in 1833, following the Black Hawk war, a
large part of their land in Iowa was taken by the United States and
opened for settlement. The Black Hawk purchase, through which the
Iowa river flows, was the beginning of Iowa, and by later acquisitions
the entire state was opened for the use of the pioneers.

While the Sac and Fox federation claimed the eastern and central
part of Iowa, there were other tribes having rights and making use of
the hunting grounds. The Iowa tribe wandered all over the state. The
Winnebagoes were given land in northeast Yowa, but later were moved
north. The Pottawattamies lived along the Missouri river, and were
associated with the Otoes, Omahas and others. The Sioux tribe, of the
Dakotah nation, claimed all northern Ipwa and not until long after
statehood was their title extinguished.

The Mesquakie Indians, now living in Jowa, are a branch of the Fox
tribe, who returned after removal to the south.

The United States maintained several forts in Iowa or along the
borders. Fort Madison, in Lee county, was maintained for a time after
1808. Fort Armstrong was placed on Rock Island in 1818. Fort Craw-
ford had been maintained at Prairie du Chien many years. Fort Atkin-
son was located on the *neutral strip” and Fort Croghan was on the
Migsouri. In 1834, Fort Pes Moines was built at Montrose, and the gecond
Fort Des Moines was located at the Raccoon fork of the Des Moines in
1843. Fort Clark wag maintained for a brief time at Fort Dodge. The
present Fort Des Moines was esfablished as a cavalry post at the state
capitol in 1900.

The site for the capital city of Jowa was first studied by Gen. Stephen
W. Kearny, then a colonel in command of the first Fort Des Moines, who
in 1835 brought a company of dragoons to the Raccoon forks looking
for a good place to establish a military post. He was accompanied hy
Capt. Nathan Boone, son of Daniel, and by Lieut. Albert M, Lea, who
published a description of central Towa and made a map on which he
named this the “Iowa district.! From this the territory formed soon
afterwards took its name,

Although there were only 22,859 people in the twenty-two counties
west of the river when Towa was set off as a territory, agitation for
statehood commenced almost at once. One obstacle was the unwilling-
ness of Congress, as then constituted, to admit any free soil state with-
out also adding a slave state, so that the slave states would at all
time have control of the senate. Several states had been so paired off
for admission. The bill authorizing admission of Jowa in 1845 also pro-
vided for admission of Florida, one free and one slave state,

The pecople of Towa and Congress disagreed as to the proper bound-
aries for Iowa, and Jowa twice rejected what was offered. Congress
proposed that the western one-third of the state should not be included,
but that all of southeastern Minnesota should be a part of Iowsa. The
Iowa people finally got the boundaries as they are now and a year and
a half after admission was authorized, the final act of admission was
passed and the state proclaimed, December 28, 1846.

When the territory was organized, Brevet Brig. Gen. Henry Atkinson
was named territorial governor of Iowa, but declined the appointment
and Robert Lucas was named and assumed the office. CGeneral Lucas



IOWA OFFICIAL REGISTER—1949-1950 5]

had been governor of Ohio and had fought in the American wars. When
the state was organized, Ansel Briggs of Jackson county, had been elected
to be the first governor of the state. The general assembly met and
enacted laws before the final act of admission was completed at the
national capital:

Burlington had been the capital of the Territory of Wisconsin and be-
came the first capital of the Territory of Iowa. Later this was moved
to Xowa City which became the first state capital, and so remained until
the year 1857 when the capital was removed to Des Moines. The capitol
building at Iowa City was turned over to the State university and a
temporary statehouse was occupied at Des Moines while the present
state capitol was being built.

The state constitution under which Iowa had entered the Union and
which had been hastily prepared in 1844 and remodeled in 1846, was
discarded and a mew constitution adopted in 1857, whick has since been
several times amended. Slavery was forbidden from the start, but voting
rights were reserved for white persons until 1868. Liberal school legis-
lation was enacted at the outset. Elections were held every year until
the biennial election system was adopted in 1904.

Iowa was strongly democratic in politics as a territory and for the
first eight years of the state. In 1854 the whigs elected the governor,
who helped the free soil element organize the republican party, which
dominated for 35 years. In 1890 a democrat became governor, because
of dissensions over policy as to alcoholic drinks, Then followed eleven
republican administrations, when in 1933 the democrats again seated
two governors, who were followed by four republicans to the present
time. In 1907 the law required that all party nominations bhe made at
primary elections.

By 1860 the state had 674,000 people, and for the war that came soon
after furnished 76,000 volunteers,

In the period 1860 to 1870, the population increased to 1,194,000 after
which the growth was slower.

The land area of the state 13 55,586 square miles, or 35,675,040 acres,
and the water surface 561 square miles, The maximum elevation of the
state above sea level is about 1,600 feet.

Literacy in Iowa is at the top, racial and labor controversies are
little known, state educational and correctional institutions are well
supported, and the populaticn is fairly well divided as between urkan
and rural residents. Iowa schools have a nationwide reputation as among
the very best in the country.
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NEW STATE HOUSE OFFICE BUILDING NOW BEING CONSTRUCTED JUST EAST OF THE MAIN CAPITOL BUILDING
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Iowa State Capitol

By Ora Williams

Former Curntor, State Depaurtment of History nnd Archives

of Iowa are centralized in an imposing and substantial state capitol
occupying a prominent place in a spacious park on a hill com-
manding the capital city of Des Moines.

THE administrative, legislative and judicial functions of the State

In its architectural features, its lines of simple beauty, its convenient
interior arrangement, and in its decoration and adornment, the Iowa
State capitol compares favorably with those of other states. It has
served well the needs of the state as a seat of government for more than
half of the state’'s first century of statehood. The surrounding grounds,
or park, provide a setting which in extent and attractiveness is un-
equaled. The state has an investment in this plant for the transaction of
public business of over seven million dollars.

The governor and other elective state officials have offices in the
capitol, on the first or main floor, conveniently grouped around two cen-
tral halls in the form of a cross, the offices amply, but not luxuriantly,
furnished with modern equipment, On this floor sits the highest judicial
tribunal of the state, in the supreme court chambers, which harmonize
with the dignity and importance of that body. The legislative chambers
are on the second floor, while in the basement and on the third foor
there are many business offices and work rooms. The law library, and
many needed committee rooms, are on the second floor. The speaker of
the house and the lieutenant governor have offices near the large halls
for the senate and the house.

The architectural design of the capitol, rectangular in form, with
great windows and high ceilings, follows the traditional pattern of thz
nineteenth century planning for public buildings, a modified and refined
Romanesque style which gives the impression of strength and dignity
combined with utility, both severely plain and handsomely dzcorated.

The commanding feature of the capitol is the central towering dome,
It is constructed of steel and stone and is entirely covered wi.h pure
gold, which glistening in the sunlight can be seen from far distant
places. The dome is surmounted by a lookout lantern. thit may be
reached by long and winding stairs, and it terminates in a finial that
ig 275 feet above the ground floor. The rotunds beneath the dome is 67
feet in diameter. Four smaller domes of simple design rise from the
four corners of the capitol. The pediment over the front entrance dis-
closes a fine piece of allegorical sculpture.

The exterior is entirely of stone, of several kinds and differing quali-
ties, with elaborate columns and handsomely designed cornices and
capitals. The substructure is of a dark and coarse-grained attractive
stone quarried in Iowa. This is topped by a heavy course of vari-colored
and beautifully-marked granite cut from boulders scattered by glacial
action over the prairies of the state. The superstructure, or main part
of the building, is of a sandstone of a delicate buff color, fine-grained
in texture, secured from Missouri in quarries along the Mississinpi river
The approaches to the capitol are by four sets of steps mainly of granite.

The interior finish of the capitol is of native wood-—cherry, walnut,
catalpa, ozk and butternut. There is much fine wood carving, and the
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supreme court bench is especially handsome as to material and work-
manship. The main floors are of tile. Wainscoting and shelving are of
marble, American and foreign, and some of this is very rare and un-
usual, There are imposing columns in the rotunda of fine sandstone, and
on the second floor of granite, and in the legislative chambers of fabri-
cated stone.

In size the capitol is 364 feet north and south by 247 wide. The
cross-halls meet in the rotunda, with a wide opening from the basement
floor to the base of the dome. The houge chamber is in gize 79x91.4
feet, with ceiling 47.9 feet high; the senate chamber is 58x91.4 feet
and 419 to the ceiling. Each member of the Genera)l Assembly is pro-
vided with a separate desk, 108 in the house and 50 in the senate, and
the house is equipped with an electric vote recording system.

The most attractive feature of the decoration is a large oil painting
on the east wall over the grand stairway that leads from first to second
story. It bears the title “Westward,” and is an allegorical representation
of the hard journey of a frontiersman and his family, with a covered
wagon drawn by four sturdy oxen, on their way from the lush fields of
their homeland into the wilderness that was to become their Iowa. A
convoy of lovely angels guides them and their possessions to their
destiny. The picture is the work of Edwin H. Blashfield, and is a beauti-
ful work of art, inspiring in its symbolism, and it has had the com-
mendgtion of many historians and artists.

Six imposing mosaics, or paintings reproduced in stone of brilliant
colors, are just above the picture “Westward.” These are representative
of the arts, the science and the culture of the people of the midland
region. They are designed by Frederick Dielman and the craftsman-
ship was by skilled artists in Italy. High in the rotunda there are twelve
pieces of fine statuary, and beneath these there are eight lunettes, or
decorative paintings in half-circle, done by Kenyon Cox. The supreme
court chamber originally had a series of magnificent symbolic paintings
on canvas, but these now adorn the reception room in the state his-
torical building. After the fire, the entire interior was decorated in mod-
est and modern designs.

The battle flagas carried by the Iowa regiments in various wars are
preserved in niches on the main floor. In the west hall is a fine plaque
done by Nellie V. Walker in commemoration of the work of Iowa woinen
in the fight for civic and political equality. In the south hall is a mon-
ster photograph in colors, showing the grand review of Iowa troops on
return from France,

The history of the state capitol, the choosing of the location, the con-
struction thereof, and provision for a proper seiting and surroundings,
covers the whole period of statehood. Almost every step taken during
the state’s first century encountered opposition from selfish or sectional
interests, or from pretended reasons of economy, and thig was true as to
the proper site near the center of the state, the size and character of the
building and securing the necessary ground for the plant and equipment
in which to transact the business of the state.

‘The wisdom of a central location in the state for the seat of govern-
ment was recognized by the First General Assembly, and before the
state was two months old, a resolution was adopted Iooking to that end.
A commission was authorized to choose a site and lay out a capitol
city, which was done, but the location did not meet with approval and
the project was abandoned. Eight years later in 1855 the Fifth General
Assembly, despite fierce opposition, by legislative act directed the Ioca-
tion of the state capitol near the Raccoon forks of the Des Moines
river. The precise place for the building was entrusted to a commission
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and a site was selected halfway between the abandoned old Fort Des
Moines and the scene of the last Indian agency on “Keokuk’s Prairie.”
This place was decided upon because of the generous donation by citi-
zens of Des Moinse of g nine-acre tract and several buildings for a tem-
porary capitol which was in use for nearly thirty years.

By proclamation of Governor Grimes in 18357 the city of Des Moines
became the state capitol, and near the close of that year the books and
papers of the state were brought from Iowa City, the old territorial and
first state capitol.

The gtate capitol was in process of building fifteen years, The Thir-
teenth General Assembly, in 1870, created a commission which selected
the design, commenced work and in November, 1871, laid the corner-
stone. The plan adopted was a modified composite of several designs
submitted in competition. Messrs. Bell & Hackney were employed as
supervising architects. Material for the foundation was purchased from
Towa guarries, as directed by Iaw; but the stone proved unsubstantial
and nearly all had to be removed.

The first building commission was discharged and a second was au-
thorized to take charge of construction., Work proceeded under direction
of a supervisor and foreman, a working force was employed by the day,
and material and equipment was purchased on hids or by contract. The
legislature made small appropriations every two years gand the work
proceeded as rapidly as funds and material would permit.

The cornerstone was relaid by the second commission on September
29, 1873, and it contains manuscripts, books, coins, money and historical
material. It is simply inscribed “Iowa, A. D. 1873."

Construction had been so nearly completed that the legislative halls
were occupied and many of the state officés when dedication was made
in 1884. The temporary capitol was in use, however, for the supreme
court and some other offices; but in 1888 the supreme court chambers
were occupled. The work of the commission was brought to a close June
30, 1886. There was never a hint of misuse of public funds in con-
nection with the construction, and a final audit of the $3,296,256 ex-
pended showed a net error of only $3.77 in computation of bills and
accounts.

In 1902, in order to modernize the capitol and make needed changes
and repairs, a third capitol commission was created and appropriations
made for the work. While this work proceeded, there occurred a dis-
astrous fire in the north wing on January 4, 1904, which ruined the house
chamber and damaged other offices. The commission restored the build-
ing, purchased paintings and mosaics, and redecorated the entire interior.
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THE STATE BANNER

On March 29, 1921, the Thirty-ninth General Assembly adopted a reso-
lution designating a design for a flag to be known as the ‘“State
Banner.”

The banner was designed by the “Iowa Society of the Daughters of the
American Revolution,” and consists of three vertical stripes of blue,
white and red, with the blue stripe nearest the staff and the white
stripe in the center depicting a spreading eagle bearing in its beak blue
streamers on which is inscribed in white letters the state motto, “Our
liberties we prize and our rights we will maintain.”” The word “Iowa’”
in red letters is just below the streamers.
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THE WILD ROSE, THE STATE FLOWER OF IOWA
The Wild Rose was officially designated as the flower of the state by
the Twenty-sixth General Assemhly in extraordinary session. The reso-

lution was adopted May 7, 1897.
B

Haymward Haece

THE EASTERN GOLDFINCH, THE STATE BIRD OF IOWA

The Forty-fifth General Assembly, by a concurrent resolution adopted
March 22, 1933, designated the Eastern Goldfinch (Spinus tristis trist-is),
as the official Iowa bird. The Goldfinch is generally designated as a wild

canary.
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The Iowa State Capitol Park

needed more room for the transaction of business properly at the state

capitol, and the Thirty-fifth General Assembly authorized an enlarge-

ment of the capitol grounds. A special tax levy was made, and with
the proceeds, the state purchased lots and residences and business houses
adjacent to the cramped public area sufficient to embrace over 93 acres
in the park. Several hundred buildings were removed or taken down
at a total cost of about $3,000,000,

IT HAD become evident early in the present century that the state

The most conspicuous object on the capitol grounds is the Iowa monu-
ment to the soldiers and sailors of the Civil war on ground formerly
occupied by the temporary state capitol. This is a granite shaft 145
feet high, surmounted by a heroic bronze figure of “Victory”; while at
the base there are four groups representing different branches of the
military or naval service, and numerocus historical plagues and medaliion
portraits of typical soldiers. The original design was by Harriet A.
Ketcham and work was commenced in 1894, The plan for removal of
this monument to a more appropriate location on the mall east of the
capitol has never been done.

A striking monument in memory of the late Sen. Wm. B. Allison
stands near by, the gift of Gen. Grenville M. Dodge. This is an alle-
gorical design of heroic dimensions, depicting civic duties in the public
service, and it is encompassed by a fountain.

A small and appropriate memorial to Christopher Columbus, erected
by Iowa citizens of Italian ancestry, stands near by. Waest of the capi-
tol, at the head of Locust street, is an impressive bronze statuary group
depicting “The Pioneer.” The cannon and mortar on the grounds are of
Civil war days. The grave of Willson A. Scott, one of those who gave
the state the capitol grounds, is near where he lived and is appropriately
marked. A bronze cannon taken in the Spanish-American war, and the
headpiece of the Battleship Towa, are near the historical building. A
granite block dedicated to the soldiers of the Spanish-American war
veterans stands on the plaza east of the capitol.

The state historical department occupies one of the most beautiful
public buildingsa of the state on ground northeast of the capitol now em-
braced in the capitol park. This was erected near the close of the last
cenfury as a home for the department founded by the late Charles Aldrich
in 1892 some ten years after he and his wife had presented the state
with their magnificent collection of autographs and other historiecal
material. The state historical buflding is 260x110 feet in size and cost
375,000. 1In it are found not only the state’s collection of histerical ma-
terial of every kind, the state historical and genealogical library, a
wonderful portrait cellection, the state museums, and the priceless state
archives, hut also the state traveling library, the state medical library,
and the state vital statistics records. The Kasson memorial hall, a short
distance away, has recently been purchased by the department for an
archives work room and is partly used for that purpose,

The magnificent golden dome of the capitol, one of the largest in the
world, is a landmark that can be seen for many miles. The capitol, the
state historical building, and the capitol park are visited annually by
thouszands of people of Iowa and tourists from other states. On the
grounds there are several very large native trees, and the grounds are
further adorned by many shrubs, trees and flowers .
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The State of Iowa Has Its Own
Governor’s Home
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The Governor of Iowa

WILLIAM S. BEARDSLEY

New Virginia Republican

William S. Beardsley, the son of William and Carrie (Shane) Beardsley,
thirty-first Governor of Iowa, was born at Beacon, Iowa, May 13, 1901, and
grew to manhood at Birmingham, Iowa; graduate of Birmingham high school
and Bowen Institute of Pharmacy and Chemistry. Married Charlotte E.
Manning of Birmingham, Iowa, and they are parents of four children living,
Blaine, of Ketchikan, Alaska, Mary (Mrs. Henry F. Schieg) of Fort Wayne,
Indiana, Charlotte (Mrs. Doyle E, Stickel) of New Virginia, and Dan at home,
One son, William, deceased. He established a drug business in New Virginia,
in 1922; served in 45th, 45th ex., 46th, 46th ex., 47th and 48th General Assem-
blies as Senator from Clarke and Warren Counties; since then engaged in
operating his 900 acre livestock farm near New Virginia. In 1947 elected to

ouse of Representatves from Warren County. Elected Governor in 1948,
Member Methodist Church, Masonic bodies and IOOF.
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Lieutenant Governor

KENNETH A. EVANS
Mills County

Republican

Born at Emerson, Iowa, November 9, 1898, son of Marion L. and Hattie
M. Evans. Attended the Emerson public schools, St. James school at Fari-
bault, Minnesota, Mercersburg Academy at Mercersburg, Pennsylvania, and
the University of Illinois, Member of Phi Kappa Psi fraternity, all Masonic
bodies, Shrine and American Legion. Served ten years as member of town
council at Emerson and two _years as chairman of the Republican central
committee of Mills county. Engaged in the operation and management of
farms in Iowa. Married Elsie B. Sharp, June 8, 1921, at Manchester, Iowa;
father of three children, Robert L., Rosalie Ann and Arnold A. Member of
the Iowa Senate in the 47th, 48th, 49th, 50th and 50th Extra General As-
semblies. BElected lieutenant governor in 1944, reelected in 1946 and 1948.
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U. S. Senators From Iowa

B. B. Hickenlooper Guy M. Gillette

BOURKE B. HICKENLOOFER
Linn County .

Republican

Born in Bloeckton, Iowa, July 21, 1896, son of Nathan O, and Margaret A.
Hickenlooper, both of whom were born in Taylor county. Graduate of Iowa
State college department of industrial science and of the Iowa law school
of the University of Iowa. Entered the practice of law in Cedar Rapids,
Towa, in 1922. Served twenty-one months in the army during the Worla
War, a portion of which was spent overseas with the 339th Field Artillery.
Married in 1927 to Verna E. Bensch and has two children, Jane Carroll and
David B. Member of the Consistory and Shrine, B.P.O.E., 0Odd Fellows,
Moose, American Legion and Veterans of Foreign Wars., Affiliated with
the Methodist church. Served Linn County in the House of Representatives
two terms; lieutenant governor, 1939-43; governor, 1943-1945; elected United
States senator and took office 1945.

GUY M. GILLETTE
Cherokee County

Democrat

Born in Cherokee, Towa, February 3, 1879, and attended public schools;
graduated from the Drake University College of Law; served as prosecuting
attorney of Cherokee county, 1907-09; membér of State Senate, 1912-16;
served as sergeant in Spanish-American war and as captain of infantry in
France during World War I; married and has one son; elected to the 73rd
Congress in 1932 from the Ninth Iowa District; re-elected to the 74th
Congress, and served until his resignation on November 3, 1936, having
been elected to the United States Senate to fill the vacancy caused by the
death of Louis Murphy; was re-elected United States Senator for Lhe full
term November 8, 1935, At the end of that term was out of politjical life
until 1949 when he was again elected a member of the Senate from Iowa
for another six year term.
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Iowa Congressional Districts

By act of the Forty-ninth General Assembly, which convened January
13, 1941, the State of Iowa was redistricted both congressionally and
senatorially.

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS

Senate File 540, “to redistrict the state into eight congressional dis-
tricts” became effective as to the nomination and election of representa-
tives in Congress in 1942.

Congressional districts include the following counties:
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First District—Lee, Van Buren, Des Moines, Henry, Jefferson, Wash-
ington, Louisa, Muscatine, Scott, Cedar, Johnson and Iowa.

Second District—Winneshiek, Allamakee, Fayette, Clayton, Buchanan,
Delaware, Dubuque, Jackson, Clinton, Jones, Linn and Benton.

Third Distriect—Worth, Mitchell, Howard, Cerro Gordo, Floyd, Chicka-
saw, Franklin, Butler, Bremer, Hardin, Grundy, Black Ha.wk Marshall
and Tama,

Fourth District—Jasper, Poweshiek Mahaska, Keokuk, Union, Clarke,
Lucas, Monroe, Wapello, Ringgold, Decatur, Wayne, Appanoose, Davis,

Fifth District—Story, Dallas, Polk, Madison, Warren and Marion.

Sixth District—Emmet, Kossuth, Palo Alto, Winnebago, Hancock,
Wright, Humboldt, Pocahontas, Calhoun, Webster, Hamilton, Crawford,
Carroll, Greene and Boone.

Seventh District—Monona, Harrison, Shelby, Audubon, Guthrie, Pot-
tawattamie, Cass, Adair, Mills, Adams, Montgomery, Fremont Page and
Taylor,

Eighth District—Lyon, Osceocla, Dickinson, Sioux, O'Brien, Clay, Ply-
mouth, Cherokee, Buena Vista, Woodbury, Ida and Sac.
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U. S. Representatives From Iowa

MARTIN, Thomas Ellsworth Republican
First Distriet Congressman—JIowa City

Thomas Ellsworth Martin, Republican,
of Towa City, Iowa, born in Melrose, Mon-
roe county, Iowa, January 18, 1893; at-
tended country school in Monroe county
and grade and high schools in Russell,
Iowa; attended and graduated Albia high
school, State University of Iowa, 1916;
juris . doctor degree, Law College, State
University of Iowa, 1927: Order of Coif;
awarded university fellowship by Columbia
university; L.L.M. degree, Columbia uni-
versity 1928; accountant and lawyer; ad-
mitted to Iowa bar, 1927; member John-
son county, Iowa State and American Bar
associations; city solicitor of Iowa City,
1933-35; mayor of Iowa City, 1935-37; Re-
publican nominee for railroad commis-
sioner of Iowa in 1932 and 1934; permanent
chairman, JTowa state presidential conven-
tion, February 28, 1936; graduate, First
Officers’ Training Camp, Leon Springs,
Texas, 1917; commissioned United States
Regular army; served with Thirty-fifth
Infantry throughout the war; retired No-
vember 10, 1919; assistant professor mili-
tary science and tactics, University of
Iowa, 1921-23; sales analyst, Goodyear Tire
and Rubber Co., 1916-17 and 1920-21; mar-
ried Dorris Jeanette Brownlee of Water-
loo, Iowa, June 5, 1920; children, Richard
Coupland and Dorris Brownlee, 2d (Mrs,
Raymond Reiseh); elected to the 76th, 77th,
78th, 79th, 80th and 81st Congresses.

TALLE, Henry 0. Republican
Second District Congressman—Decor:ah

Born January 12, 1892, and reared on a
farm near Albert Lea, Minnesota. A.DB.,
Luther College. Educated further at Uni-
versity of Minnesota, Boston University,
IEmerson College of Oratory, and Chicago
University. Professor of economics, Lu-
ther College, Decorah, 1921-1938. Treas-
urer of college 1932-1938, Served in U, S,
navy during World War I, commissioned
ensign. KElected to Congress from the
Fourth District in 1938; re-elected in 1940.
Iilected to Congress from the Second Dis-
trict in 1942. Re-elected in 1944 and 1948,
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two sons,

LIE COMPTE, K. M. Repuialican
Fourth District Congressman—Corydon

Representative in Congress from the
Fourth Congressional district; was born
in Wayne county, Iowa, May 25, 1887;
served as a private in the World war,
married; a graduate of the State Univer-
sity of Iowa, 1909, from the college of
liheral arts; member of the state senate
of the 37th and 38th General Assemblies of
Iowa; member of the Iowa 'Territorial
Centennial committee; elected to the 76th,
77th, 78th, 79th, 30th and 81st Congresses.

Indiana,

Michigan;

mer state

H. R. GROSS Republican

Third District Congressman—Waterloo

Born at Arispe, Iowa, June 30, 1899, and
raised on a farm; education, rural schools,
of Missouri School of Journal-
ism; profession, newspaper reporter and
editor from 1921 to 1935; radio news com-
mentator from 1935 to 1948; military serv-
ice, Mexican Border Service 1916, American
Expeditionary Forces World War I; mem-
ber Presbyterian church, Masonic lodge,
Elks, American Legion. Married to Hazel
Iowa, June 29, 1929;
hil, 16, and Alan, 11, E
to the Eighty-first Congress from Third
Iowa district on November 2, 1948,

[E. Webster, Cresco,

CUNNINGHAM, Paul

Republican

Fifth District Congressman—Des Moines

Born in Indiana county, Pa., son of Rob-
ert Harvey and Sarah Jane Cunningham;
graduated from the State Normal school,
and from the literary and
the TUniversity of
practiced law in Des Moines.
Fort Sheridan Training camp, 1917; dis-
charged 1